Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

Town of Fitzwilliam
Planning Board
Meeting Minutes
June 4, 2019

Member’s Present: Suzanne Gray, Chairman; Terry Silverman, Vice Chairman; Mike Methe seated for Robin Peard Blais,
Secretary; Paul Haynes, Karen Craig, and Barbara Young, Members; and Charley Kenison, Selectman’s Representative.

Members Absent: Robin Peard Blais, Secretary.

Others Present: Mike Rossi, Fitzwilliam LLC., Dana Pinney, interested party; Richard Ketcham, Applicant/Owner; Tom
and Linda Ordway, neighbors of the Ketchams.

Public Hearing: “You are hereby notified that the Planning Board will hold the following public hearing in the Town Hall at
13 Templeton Turnpike in Fitzwilliam, NH on Tuesday, June 4, 2019 at 7:00 PM.
Public Hearing. Planning Board Case 19-03, Fitzwilliam LLC application for a Site Plan Review for a change of
use to manufacturing wood wall panels, at 179 Rte. 12 North, Map 15, Lot 29, in the Light Industrial District.

Mike Rossi explained that they are a lumber company based out of Lunenburg, MA and they will be manufacturing wood
wall panels in Fitzwilliam. Rossi told Members that Giuliano Fernandez is the Owner and Vice President and he was the
individual who was at the Preliminary Consultation. Employees will work indoors and loose materials will be stored
inside. When complete, wall panels are brought outside to be loaded on trucks. Trucks generally load at 5 AM and
then head into Boston for shipping elsewhere. They are planning to have retail store in front at some point; but, not
immediately. The town doesn’t have a hardware store so they feel there is a need for the retail presence. They
expect to employ 25-30 and will move some people from Lunenburg. Mike Rossi will move his office to this location.
Methe asked if there wasn’t already an office. Methe explained that the interior of the building had some damage and
an issue with mold. That is why they are applying for a demolition permit to take out walls and rebuild new all wood
offices.

Gray asked the Board to take up the completeness of the application.  Gray also noted that the application did not
include the retail component. Rossi stated that the retail is a thought for the future. Gray asked members to consider
the completeness. Gray noted there are extensive items that the applicant has asked be Waived. Rossi explained that
everything will remain the same outside, including parking, lighting and fire hydrants. Rossi told members that a brand
new sprinkler system will be added and all fire hydrants checked for correct functionality. Gray again pointed out the
unusual number of waivers requested including catch-basins and location of sewage facilities and asked the Board
Members for their input. Rossi noted that they did check the town files and found plans showing site information and
they do not expect to make changes. Gray requested information from the property file and the LUA pulled the
property file and retrieved plans that Rossi had provided. Rossi told member that the wells have been tested and the
state is involved and that everything is being tested. Young asked when they expect to start the manufacturing
process. Rossi replied “as soon as they get a permit”, hopefully within three to four months.  Rossi did tell Members
that they began cleanup in the facility before they had a permit. He caught the problem and put the work on hold
which is where things stand right now.

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 1 of 6



Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

The LUA asked for confirmation that this property was previously CR Bard. It was confirmed and she passed out
information about the site when it was CR Bard. Board members reviewed documentation from the property file that
indicated that there are underground oil tanks that DES seems to be monitoring as there are communications from DES
in the file, including letters dated within the past few years. Gray asked Rossi if there are underground storage tanks on
the property. Rossi stated that he did not know of any, except the four septic tanks on the property unless that are
connected to the water from catch basins. Gray read from a DES document date June 18, 2018 which relates to
Ground Water Permit Renewal, which relates to a problem discovered in 1995 and on-site release of petroleum
hydrocarbons. She noted that the date is after this new ownership and their appearance before the Board for a
Preliminary Consultation. She noted that there are multiple documents are included in the file that the board members
should probably review. Gray pointed out that Alternate Member Mike Methe’s name appeared on a document. Mike
explained that he did work at that facility for 20 years. Gray noted that there is a letter in the file to the new owners
telling them that they are not eligible for reimbursement of clean-up costs by DES.  Gray asked Methe for his input.
Methe stated that he feels the building is basically sound. He does not believe that the underground oil tanks have ever
been removed. He understands that the previous owners did convert from oil to gas heat. Methe offered that he
believes that the oil tank was empty when the heating system was converted to gas. Rechecking the plans provided,
Members could not determine where the oil tanks were located and Rossi reiterated that he has no knowledge about
the tanks.

Gray again took up the question of completeness and whether to approve the items requested for waiver. Members
reviewed the property file documents. Haynes asked in reference to item 16 whether we have complete information in
file. Gray said that the file does not seem complete. Gray added that, in light of the letters from DES she feels the
Board really needs to take a closer look to include whether they might want to require removal of the oil tanks;
therefore, application item 16 is something that they would not waive; but, instead, need to have more information.
She explained item 16 covers “size and location of all public service connections: gas, power, telephone, fire alarm,
whether overhead or underground”.

Haynes asked whether acceptance of the application should be contingent upon knowing where the tanks are located.
Gray stated that if the Board does not want to waive item 16; then they should not accept the application at this
meeting. She added that turning down the application as complete would also allow them to get more information
regarding the DES situation. Haynes asked if the tank thing is more DES jurisdiction than the Planning Board’s. Gray
explained that she feels, regardless, this is something that the Board needs to better understand. Gray asked about
signs. Rossi stated that they did not currently plan to have any signs, other than maybe an entrance and exit. Haynes
asked about a sign for the retail part of the business. Rossi stated that, if they wanted to go forward with retail, they
would re-apply at that time. Silverman told Rossi that he would need to apply to the ZBA for the sign. Gray told
Members that there was an application to the ZBA in 2007 for a retail business at that location and it was approved
then. Silverman reminded everyone that the vacancy for more than a year means there would have to be a new
application to the ZBA and Planning Board. Craig asked about the waivers and why the Board is concerned about tank
location. Gray responded that the Board wants to understand about the DES concern. Rossi asked again that the
Board waive that and simply assume that is something the state will work out in their inspections. He stated that he
just wants to get the work started to fix up the property to prepare it for use. Kenison asked whether item 16 applies if
it doesn’t specify oil. There was a brief discussion about intent and adding oil to the application checklist. Gray called
for a motion as to the completeness of the application. Haynes moved the application be accepted as complete

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 2 of 6



Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

conditional on the underground connections be inspected by DES. Gray called for further discussion. Silverman
stated that he feels the town should have the information. Silverman suggested that fire department would need to
know about any issues before giving an occupancy certificate. It was agreed that the Applicant should take the plans
that exist and draw in the locations of utilities and connections including those items that are underground. Silverman
indicated that he wouldn’t mind calling the application complete with the addition of a coherent plan. Gray agreed.
Rossi said that he does not know how to comply when the utilities are pre-existing and may be under pavement. Young
asked Rossi whether the current owner discussed the letter DES sent to him. Rossi stated that the owner did not.

Members reviewed the plans that Rossi did provide with the Application. On the plans he showed the planned location
of new offices; new remodeled bathroom for the offices and the bathroom for the manufacturing area. Gray asked
about handicapped access. Rossi said both bathrooms are handicapped accessible. Rossi pointed out and described
other features that will be updated. Rossi added that he wants to get the work started including have the state inspect;
but he needs an approval to do that.

Silverman suggested that fire department would need to know about any issues before giving an occupancy certificate.
Rossi pointed out that he will need to have fire department approval at the point that the certificate of occupancy is
approved. Rossi pointed out that he will actually have multiple certifications before they can be operational. Haynes
moved that application be accepted as complete with conditions. Silverman explained that he feels the town should
have an updated review of the site and have updated plans showing what is there now. Gray agreed about the need
of updated plans. Silverman added that he doesn’t feel they need it to accept the application at this moment. It was
agreed that the members would review the plans before they decide on completeness.

Rossi indicated that the entire inside is getting a new sprinkler system. Wells will be updated with new pipes and
pumps. The portion of the plans designated “A1” shows the bathrooms and that they are handicap accessible. Young
asked whether there have been conversations with the state. Rossi thinks that the DES information never got to the
owner’s office. Haynes moved and Craig seconded to accept the application as complete; approved unanimously to
accept the application as complete.

Dana Pinney, who lives nearby, said that he was perplexed about his understanding that a roof truss company was
moving in. Rossi said that is not correct. They build wall panels. Rossi offered that their normal work hours are from 7
AM to 5 PM most of the time. Pinney explained that his concern is about noise from the facility that he thinks he will
hear from his house.

Pinney asked about asbestos. Rossi said no asbestos. Rossi added that there was mold but Servpro came in and
professionally removed it. Haynes asked about the size of the Lunenburg facility relative to this facility. Rossi
explained that Lunenburg is just a lumberyard and added that they also have a six-acre facility in Gardner. Rossi noted
that it is a positive that this has interior manufacturing space. Rossi noted that the heavy rains have gone into the
storm drains. Young asked Rossi to describe the manufacturing process and he did that. Gray asked about unused
vehicles. He said there are no “junk vehicles”. Gray asked about landscaping. Rossi says, like Lunenburg, their own
employees will maintain the landscaping on the site. Gray moved to continue the hearing to the next meeting,
Tuesday, June 18, 2019 at 7 pm and the applicant to provide one plan with information regarding location of septic,
lighting and everything that is on the checklist. Methe seconded. There was discussion and Rossi asked that they

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 3 of 6



Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

give home conditional approval. Silverman asked to amend the motion to allow the demolition. Craig seconded.
Unanimously in favor of the amended. Approved unanimously.

Rossi left at 8:12 PM

Gray read the second Notice of Public Hearing: “You are hereby notified that the Planning Board will hold the following
public hearing in the Town Hall at 13 Templeton Turnpike in Fitzwilliam, NH on Tuesday, June 4, 2019 at 7:00 PM.

“At 7:30 PM or thereafter, Public Hearing. Planning Board Case 19-05, Richard and Deborah Ketcham
application for a Site Plan Review/Conditional Use Permit for an addition to an existing dwelling at 806 Rte.
119 West, Map 10, Lot 16, within 62 feet of Kemp Brook, where the setback is 75 feet, in the Wetlands
Overlay Protection District.

Gray noted that Mr. Ketcham had already been before the Planning Board for a Preliminary Consultation. Gray asked
Ketcham to again explain what he proposes to do. Ketcham explained that his home was built in 1931 beside Kemp
Brook. The home is within 25 feet of the brook on the east side of the home. He hopes to construct an addition to his
current house on the west side, the side away from the brook. The closest point of the brook will be 62 feet from the
brook. Gray confirmed that the use of the addition is great room and there will be no new baths and no new kitchen.
Ketcham said that is so.

Gray asked if Ketcham had met with Conservation Commission. He said he did and their concern was for the added
impermeable surface and they wanted to make sure water is directed away from the brook. Ketcham explained that
the Conservation Commission asked that he install gutters and a perimeter drain that will all be connected and will
direct stormwater to the west, away from the brook. Ketcham showed on the submitted plan where the perimeter
drain would go and explained that he plans to put gutters around the whole house, not just the addition which will mean
even less water flowing to the brook than before the addition. Kenison asked whether it will drain naturally or if pumps
will be needed to direct the flow. Ketcham told the Board that he does not expect the installation to require pumps.
Silverman asked if the Planning Board had anything from the Conservation Committee. Gray stated that they received
copies of Conservation Commission Chairman, Paul Kotila’s comments.

Gray called for input from abutters. Tom Ordway spoke, stating that he and his wife Linda live directly across the street
from the property. Ordway spoke in favor of permitting the addition, noting that Ketcham has already done a
wonderful job of improving the property.

Gray pointed to members to page 33 in the Zoning Ordinance and gave the criteria which all must be met for approval of
a Conditional Use Permit. The determination of mandatory criteria was made as follows:

1. The activity is a productive and reasonable use of the land and is in compliance with the purpose of this
section. Members agreed that the use is reasonable and appropriate according to the purpose of the ordinance.
2. Design, construction and maintenance methods are established to minimize detrimental impacts to the
wetlands and restoration is provided for. Agreed. No construction in wetland and impact minimal with runoff
mitigation planned.

3. No reasonable alternative exists which would avoid wetlands alteration or lessen the impacts. Agreed.

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 4 of 6



Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

4. The altered wetland area is less than two thousand (2,000) square feet. Members agreed and noted that no
wetlands replacement is required.

Silverman moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Zoning Ordinance Section 127-16.1. D. 4.
With the Condition installed such perimeter drains as to direct the flow of water west, away from Kemp Brook.

Gray seconded with the amendment that wording used by the Conservation Commission be incorporated and the
motion be to approve the Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Zoning Ordinance Section 127-16.1. D. 4. With
the Condition that gutters and perimeter drains are installed such as to direct the flow of water west, away from
Kemp Brook. The amended motion for approval with a condition is vote unanimously.

Ketcham left the meeting at this point along with the Ordways.

Old Business: Gray pointed out two non-substantive changes, that the date is corrected from May 5 to May 7, 2019
and that a duplicate line is removed. Rules of Procedure, having been read twice, it was moved and Young seconded
and voted unanimously to approve Rules of Procedure amended and dated May 7, 2019.

Chinook Solar Update: Gray took up the Select Board memorandum regarding the Chinook letter Board of Selectmen
Letter of May 17, 2019. Gray pointed out language about Chinook paying reasonable attorneys’ fees to $30,000. Gray
expressed her concern about the limit being enough to allow the town to hire specialists and consultants. Kenison
indicated that the feels that the Site Plan Review Committee rules will give Fitzwilliam the ability to require Chinook bear
those costs. Silverman asked whether the attorney was consulted regarding the closed session on the MOU. Kenison
stated “no’, that the town did not have an attorney working on the Chinook Solar project at that time.

Gray stated that she did go to the Select Board meeting held earlier in the day. She explained that the Board of
Selectmen was interviewing attorneys to represent the Town of Fitzwilliam on the solar project. She told Members that
they all came recommended by Madeline Mineau, the executive Director of “Clean Energy” that Robyn Bates met at a
conference. The three are larger firms capable of reviewing multiple aspects of a large project going through the Site
Plan Evaluation Committee for approval. Gray stated that BCM Environmental Law; Primmer Piper Eggleston & Cramer
PC; and Sheehan Phinney are on the list. The Board of Selectmen are still doing due diligence on that.

There was a discussion about a Chinook request to give an informational meeting on Thursday, July 18". Kenison
explained that there is a question whether the meeting should be held in the town hall when it is not a town meeting.
Silverman pointed out that he doesn’t feel there is reason to want this to move rapidly through the process so it is OK
that it is not clear where and when the informational session will be held.

Kenison explained that the Chairman represents the Planning Board and the Board of Selectmen will be limiting it to only
the Chairman’s presence. Craig suggested that the Board of Selectmen be careful regarding the way they use non-
public sessions. Young suggested that they not just permit one person; but, instead allow two from the Planning Board,
the Chairman of the Planning Board and one other Member, and two from the Conservation Commission. Young asked
if the Planning Board is more involved. It was pointed out that the PILOT has nothing to do with the Planning Board. It
is a financial issue regarding taxes. Kenison noted that there will be an opportunity for public input at another time.
Gray noted that this is the biggest proposed solar installation in NH and perhaps in New England.

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 5 of 6



Minutes Approved as Amended June 24, 2019 [see also revision to amendment July 16, 2019]

Work Session: Draft Shoreland Protection Ordinance and Draft Wetlands Protection Overlay District. The Chair asked if
members still wished to do a work session this evening. Haynes made a motion to move the work session to the next
meeting; Craig seconded the motions and it was voted unanimously.

Dana Pinney asked a question about the noise ordinance and how to understand it in connection to the traffic and
especially the beeping of trucks backing up. Gray told him the intermittent and irregular noises like that do not play a
real part in decisions. Continual and/or regular noises do have a greater impact on decisions.

There being no additional business to conduct, it was moved; seconded and it was unanimously voted to adjourn at
9:00 PM. The next meeting is scheduled for June 18, 2019 and will include a Continuance of the Fitzwilliam LLC
application for Site Plan Review.

Respectfully Submitted,

Laurie Hayward
Land Use Administrative Assistant

PB Minutes meeting June 4, 2019 Page 6 of 6



